Project Approval

Section 75J of the Environmental Planning & Assessment Act 1979

As delegate of the Minister for Planning under delegation executed on 14 September 2011, effective from 1 October 2011, I approve the project application referred to in Schedule 1, subject to the conditions in Schedule 2 and Statement of Commitments in Schedule 3.

These conditions are required to:

- prevent, minimise, and/or offset adverse environmental impacts;
- set standards and performance measures for acceptable environmental performance;
- require regular monitoring and reporting; and
- provide for the ongoing environmental management of the project.

Deputy Director-General

Development Assessment & Systems Performance

Department of Planning and Infrastructure

Sydney

UZ April

2012

SCHEDULE 1

Application No.:

MP10 0179

Proponent:

Health Infrastructure

Approval Authority:

Minister for Planning & Infrastructure

Land:

Ryde Hospital, Denistone

Lots 1 and 2 in Deposited Plan 1137800

Project:

Graythwaite Rehabilitation Centre, including:

- Construction of a 3-4 storey, 64 bed rehabilitation centre including ground floor parking for 79 vehicles;
- External at-grade parking for 26 vehicles;
- New driveways;
- Associated landscape works and removal of one street tree; and
- Boundary adjustment between Lots 1 and 2 in DP 1137800.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

DEE111			· ·
DEFINI			3
PART A	A - ADMINISTRATIVE CONDITIONS		4
A1.	Development Description		4
A2.	Development in Accordance with Plans and Documentation		4
A3.	Prescribed Conditions		4
A4.	Lapsing of Approval		4
A5.	Works not Included in this Approval		5
			5 5
A6.	Inconsistency between plans and documentation		5
	B – PRIOR TO THE ISSUE OF A SECTION 109R CERTIFICATE		6
B1.	Section 109R Certificate		6
B2.	Design Modifications		6
B3.	Car Park and Service Vehicle Layout		6
B4.	Construction Noise and Vibration Management Plan		6
B5.	Outdoor Lighting		6
B6.	Pre-Construction Dilapidation Reports		7
	C – PRIOR TO COMMENCMENT OF WORKS		8
C1.	Notice to be Given Prior to Excavation		8
C2.	Structural Details		8
C3.	Construction Management Plan		8
C4.	Traffic & Pedestrian Management Plan	Ψ;	8
C5.	Contact Telephone Number		8
	D – DURING CONSTRUCTION		9
D1.	Hours of Work		9
D2.	Construction, Erosion, Traffic and Waste Management		9
D3.	Geotechnical Requirements		9
D4.	Disposal of Seepage and Stormwater		9
D5.	Approved Plans to be On-site		9
D6.	Site Notice		9
D7.			9
	Contact Telephone Number		
D8.	Protection of Trees – Street Trees		10
D9.	Protection of Trees – On-site Trees		10
D10.	Dust Control Measures		10
D11.	Impact of Below Ground (Sub-surface) Works – Non-Aboriginal Relics		10
D12.	Impact of Below Ground (Sub-surface) Works – Aboriginal Relics		10
PART E	E – PRIOR TO ISSUE OF A SUBDIVISION CERTIFICATE		11
E1.	Access		11
E2.	Services		11
E3.	Part 4A Certificate	8	11
	F – PRIOR TO ISSUE OF OCCUPATION OR USE		12
F1.	Landscaping in accordance with the plans		12
F2.	Section 73 Certificate		12
F3.	Fire Safety Certificate		12
F4.	Road Damage		12
F5.	Post-construction Dilapidation Report		12
PART (G – DURING OPERATIONS	7)	13
G1.	Annual Fire Safety Certification		13
G2.	Loading and Unloading		13
G3.	Unobstructed Driveways and Parking Areas		13
G4.	Provision of Parking Spaces for Adjoining Medical Centre		13
G5.			
	Storage of Hazardous or Toxic Material		13
G6.	Public Way to be Unobstructed		13
	DRY NOTES		14
AN1.	Sydney Water		14
AN2.	Requirements of Public Authorities for Connection to Services		14
AN3.	Compliance with Building Code of Australia		14
AN4.	Application for Hoardings and Scaffolding		14
AN5.	Application for Hoardings and Scaffolding		14
AN6.	Use of Mobile Cranes		14
AN7.	Noise Generation		15
AN8.	Street Numbering		15
AN9.	Temporary Structures		15
AN10.	Disability Discrimination Act		15
			15
AN11.	Commonwealth Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999		
SUHED	PULE 3- STATEMENT OF COMMITMENTS		16

NSW Government Department of Planning & Infrastructure 2 of 20

DEFINITIONS

In this approval,

Act means the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended).

Advisory Notes means advisory information relating to the approved development but do not form a part of this approval.

BCA means the Building Code of Australia.

Certifying Authority has the same meaning as Part 4A of the Act.

Council means Ryde City Council.

Department means the Department of Planning & Infrastructure or its successors.

Director-General means the Director-General of the Department or his nominee.

Environmental Assessment (EA) means the Environmental Assessment prepared by City Plan Services and dated October 2011.

Minister means the Minister for Planning.

MP No. 10_0179 means the Major Project described in the Proponent's EA as amended by the Response to Submissions and Preferred Project Report.

PCA means a Principal Certifying Authority and has the same meaning as Part 4A of the Act.

Response to Submissions & Preferred Project Report means the Report prepared by City Plan Services and dated February 2012.

Proponent means Health Infrastructure or any party acting upon this approval.

Regulation means the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation, 2000 (as amended).

Subject Site has the same meaning as the land identified in Part A of this schedule.

SCHEDULE 2

PART A - ADMINISTRATIVE CONDITIONS

A1. Development Description

Development approval is granted only to carrying out the development described in detail below:

- Construction of 3-4 storey, 64 bed rehabilitation centre including ground floor parking for 79 vehicles:
- External at-grade parking for 26 vehicles;
- New driveways;
- Associated landscape works and removal of one street tree; and
- Boundary adjustment between Lots 1 and 2 in DP 1137800.

A2. Development in Accordance with Plans and Documentation

The development will be undertaken in accordance with MP No. 10_0179 and the Environmental Assessment dated October 2011, prepared by City Plan Services, except where amended by the Response to Submissions and Preferred Project Report dated February 2012, prepared by City Plan Services, and the following drawings:

Drawing No.	Revision	Name of Plan	Date
Architectural Drawi	ngs prepare	ed by Nettleton Tribe:	
AR_3717-DA-001	С	Site Plan	17.02.2012
AR_3717-DA-002	В	Site Analysis	17.02.2012
AR_3717-DA-011	С	Ground Floor Plan	17.02.2012
AR_3717-DA-012	В	Level 1 Floor Plan	17.02.2012
AR_3717-DA-013	В	Level 2 Floor Plan	17.02.2012
AR_3717-DA-014	В	Level 3 Floor Plan	17.02.2012
AR_3717-DA-015	В	Roof Plan	17.02.2012
AR_3717-DA-021	A	Elevations – Sheet 1	10.06.2011
AR_3717-DA-022	Α	Elevations – Sheet 2	10.06.2011
AR_3717-DA-031	Α	Sections – Sheet 1	10.06.2011
AR_3717-DA-081	Α	External Finishes	10.06.2011
Landscape Plan pro	epared by Si	te Design Landscape Architects	
11-0282 LP01	D	Landscape Plan	28.07.2011
	pared by Tay	lor Thompson Whitting	2
101642 SKC01	P4	Site Works Plan	25.05.2011
101642 SKC03	P4	Erosion and Sediment Control Plan	24.06.2011

except for:

- any modifications which are 'Exempt and Complying Development' as identified in State Environmental Planning Policy (Exempt and Complying Development Codes) 2008 or as may be necessary for the purpose of compliance with the BCA and any Australian Standards incorporated in the BCA; and
- otherwise provided by the conditions of this approval.

A3. Prescribed Conditions

The Proponent shall comply with the prescribed conditions of approval under Clause 98 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 in relation to the requirements of the Building Code of Australia (BCA).

A4. Lapsing of Approval

This approval will lapse 5 years from the date of commencement of approval, unless:

- 1) a shorter period of time is specified by the Regulations or
- 2) a condition in Schedule 2, or
- 3) the development has physically commenced.

A5. Works not included in this Approval

All works related to the refurbishment of the Kitchen and Linen Services Building do not form part of this approval and are outside of the scope of the works originally applied for. Separate approval(s) as required should be obtained before carrying out any refurbishment works to the Kitchen and Linen Services Building.

A6. Inconsistency between plans and documentation

In the event of an inconsistency between conditions of this project approval and the plans and documentation referred to above, the conditions of this project approval prevail

PART B - PRIOR TO THE ISSUE OF A SECTION 109R CERTIFICATE

B1. Section 109R Certificate

A Section 109R Certificate must be obtained prior to any stage of building work commencing.

B2. Design Modifications

The approved architectural plans and the approved landscape plans and the Section 109R Certificate plans and specifications relating to the proposal, required to be submitted to the Certifying Authority, pursuant to Clause 139 of the Regulation, must detail the following amendments:

a) A planter bed at least 1 metre in depth must be provided to the western boundary of the site between the proposed 8 external parking spaces and the adjoining residential premises at No 45 Fourth Avenue. The planter bed is to incorporate advanced plantings of trees and shrubs to a height of at least 3 metres and of a density that will provide a visual buffer between the site and the adjoining residential development.

B3. Car Park and Service Vehicle Layout

The layout of the car park shall comply with Australian Standard AS2890.1: 2004 Parking Facilities Part 1: Off Street Parking. All parking spaces are to be linemarked. Details demonstrating compliance with these requirements shall be submitted to the satisfaction of the Certifying Authority prior the issue of a Section 109R Certificate.

B4. Construction Noise and Vibration Management Plan

Prior to the issue of a Section 109R Certificate, a detailed construction noise and vibration management plan (CNVMP) shall be prepared by a qualified acoustic engineer, and submitted to the Certifying Authority. Construction Noise Management outlined in the CNVMP is to be in accordance with Part 4 of the "Interim Construction Noise Guidelines" by the Department of Environment and Climate Change. For the purpose of determining internal noise levels for construction, the adjacent medical centre is to be treated as a sensitive land use, with ward spaces within the medical centre being subject to no greater than 45dBA while other areas (store rooms, ancillary office space, waiting rooms or the like) being subject to the noise criteria of "Interim Construction Noise Guidelines" and Australian Standard 2436:2010 "Guide to noise control on construction, maintenance and demolition sites". If necessary to achieve internal noise goals, the CNVMP shall include appropriate measures such as mufflers fitted to equipment and wrapping of equipment and / or the erection of an acoustic barrier. The CNVMP should otherwise comply with the recommendations contained in the Acoustic Assessment report prepared by Acoustic Logic and appended to the EA.

This includes the recommendations for vibration management in section 4.3.2 of the Acoustic Logic Report. In addition, the following measures are to be adopted to assist with vibration management during construction:

- Carry out a detailed vibration study prior to construction commencement which recommends suitable buffer distances or identifies equipment that should not be used; and
- Vibration monitoring is to be conducted at the commencement of excavation to ensure that vibration levels are below the required limits.

B5. Outdoor Lighting

All outdoor lighting shall comply with, where relevant, AS/NZ1158.3: 1999 Pedestrian Area (Category P) Lighting and AS4282: 1997 Control of the Obtrusive Effects of Outdoor Lighting. Details demonstrating compliance with these requirements are to be submitted to the satisfaction of the Certifying Authority prior to the issue of a Section 109R Certificate for above ground works.

B6. Pre-Construction Dilapidation Reports

The Applicant is to engage a qualified structural engineer to prepare a Pre-Construction Dilapidation Report detailing the current structural condition of all existing and adjoining buildings, infrastructure and roads. The report shall be submitted to the satisfaction of the Certifying Authority prior to the issue of the Section 109R Certificate.

PART C - PRIOR TO COMMENCMENT OF WORKS

C1. Notice to be Given Prior to Excavation

The PCA and Council shall be given written notice, at least 48 hours prior to the commencement of excavation, shoring or underpinning works on the site.

C2. Structural Details

Prior to the commencement of construction, the Applicant shall submit to the satisfaction of the PCA structural drawings prepared and signed by a suitably qualified practising Structural Engineer that comply with:

- (1) the relevant clauses of the BCA,
- (2) the relevant development consent,
- (3) drawings and specifications comprising the Section 109R Certificate, and
- (4) the relevant Australian Standards listed in the BCA (Specification Al.3).

C3. Construction Management Plan

Prior to the commencement of any works on the site, a Construction Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved by Certifying Authority. The Plan shall address, but not be limited to, the following matters where relevant:

- (1) hours of work (see also D1 below),
- (2) contact details of site manager,
- (3) traffic management (see also C3 below),
- (4) noise and vibration management (see also B4 above),
- (5) waste management (in accordance with details submitted with the EA), and
- (6) erosion and sediment control (in accordance with details submitted with the EA).

The Applicant shall submit a copy of the approved plan to Council.

C4. Traffic & Pedestrian Management Plan

Prior to the commencement of any works on the site, a Construction Traffic and Pedestrian Management Plan prepared by a suitably qualified person shall be submitted to and approved by the Certifying Authority. The Plan shall address, but not be limited to, the following matters:

- (1) ingress and egress of vehicles to the site,
- (2) loading and unloading, including construction zones,
- (3) predicted traffic volumes, types and routes, and
- (4) pedestrian and traffic management methods.

The Applicant shall submit a copy of the approved plan to Council.

C5. Contact Telephone Number

Prior to the commencement of the works, the Applicant shall forward to the Department and Council a 24 hour telephone number to be operated for the duration of the construction works.

PART D - DURING CONSTRUCTION

D1. Hours of Work

Work on the project to be limited to the following hours: -

Monday to Friday - 7.00am to 5.00pm; Saturday - 8.00am to 1.00pm No work to be carried out on Sunday or Public Holidays.

The builder/contractor shall be responsible to instruct and control sub-contractors regarding the hours of work. Council will exercise its powers under the Protection of the Environment Operations Act, in the event that the building operations cause noise to emanate from the property on Sunday or Public Holidays or otherwise than between the hours detailed above.

D2. Construction, Erosion, Traffic and Waste Management

All works shall be carried out in accordance with the Construction Management Plan referred to in Condition C3; Traffic and Pedestrian Management Plan referred to in Condition C4, Construction Noise and Vibration Management Plan referred to in Condition B4; the Erosion and Sediment control plan submitted with the EA; and Construction Waste Management Plan submitted with the EA.

D3. Geotechnical Requirements

All works shall be carried out in accordance with the recommendations of the Geotechnical Report by Jeffery and Katauskas Pty Ltd dated 21 October 2011 and submitted as Annexure 7 to the EA as amended and updated by the letter from Jeffery and Katauskas dated 28 February 2012 submitted as Annexure 8 to the Response to Submissions and PPR.

D4. Disposal of Seepage and Stormwater

Any seepage or rainwater collected on-site during construction shall not be pumped to the street stormwater system unless separate prior approval is given in writing by Council.

D5. Approved Plans to be On-site

A copy of the approved and certified plans, specifications and documents incorporating conditions of approval and certification shall be kept on the site at all times and shall be readily available for perusal by any officer of the Department, Council or the PCA.

D6. Site Notice

A site notice(s) shall be prominently displayed at the boundaries of the site for the purposes of informing the public of project details including, but not limited to the details of the Builder, Principal Certifying Authority and Structural Engineer. The notice(s) is to satisfy all but not be limited to, the following requirements:

- a) Minimum dimensions of the notice are to measure 841mm x 594mm (A1) with any text on the notice to be a minimum of 30 point type size;
- b) The notice is to be durable and weatherproof and is to be displayed throughout the works period;
- c) The approved hours of work, the name of the site/project manager, the responsible managing company (if any), its address and 24 hour contact phone number for any inquiries, including construction/noise complaint are to be displayed on the site notice; and
- d) The notice(s) is to be mounted at eye level on the perimeter hoardings/fencing and is to state that unauthorised entry to the site is not permitted.

D7. Contact Telephone Number

The Applicant shall ensure that the 24 hour contact telephone number is continually attended by a person with authority over the works for the duration of the development.

D8. Protection of Trees - Street Trees

All street trees shall be protected at all times during construction. Any tree on the footpath, which is damaged or removed during construction, shall be replaced, to the satisfaction of Council.

D9. Protection of Trees - On-site Trees

All trees on the site that are not approved for removal are to be suitably protected by way of tree guards, barriers or other measures as necessary are to be provided to protect root system, trunk and branches, during construction.

D10. Dust Control Measures

Adequate measures shall be taken to prevent dust from affecting the amenity of the neighbourhood during construction. In particular, the following measures must be adopted:

- a) Physical barriers shall be erected at right angles to the prevailing wind direction or shall be placed around or over dust sources to prevent wind or activity from generating dust emissions,
- b) Earthworks and scheduling activities shall be managed to coincide with the next stage of development to minimise the amount of time the site is left cut or exposed,
- c) All materials shall be stored or stockpiled at the best locations,
- d) The surface should be dampened slightly to prevent dust from becoming airborne but should not be wet to the extent that run-off occurs,
- e) All vehicles carrying spoil or rubble to or from the site shall at all times be covered to prevent the escape of dust or other material,
- f) All equipment wheels shall be washed before exiting the site using manual or automated sprayers and drive-through washing bays,
- g) Gates shall be closed between vehicle movements and shall be fitted with shade cloth, and
- h) Cleaning of footpaths and roadways shall be carried out regularly.

D11. Impact of Below Ground (Sub-surface) Works - Non-Aboriginal Relics

If any archaeological relics are uncovered during the course of the work, then all works shall cease immediately in that area and the NSW Heritage Office contacted. Depending on the possible significance of the relics, an archaeological assessment and an excavation permit under the NSW Heritage Act 1977 may be required before further works can continue in that area.

D12. Impact of Below Ground (Sub-surface) Works – Aboriginal Relics

If any Aboriginal archaeological relics are exposed during construction works, the Applicant shall immediately notify the National Parks and Wildlife Service and obtain any necessary approvals to continue the work. The Applicant shall comply with any request made by the NPWS to cease work for the purposes of archaeological recording.

PART E - PRIOR TO ISSUE OF A SUBDIVISION CERTIFICATE

E1. Access

Where relevant, to the subdivision, documentary easements for access must be created over the appropriate lots in the subdivision to provide for public access and private access to roadways, lifts, lobbies, fire stairs, service areas, loading areas and car parking areas, and created pursuant to Section 88B of the Conveyancing Act 1919.

E2. Services

Where relevant, to the subdivision, documentary easements for services, drainage, support and shelter, use of plant, equipment, loading areas and service rooms, repairs, maintenance or any other encumbrances and indemnities required for joint or reciprocal use of part or all of the proposed lots as a consequence of the subdivision, must be created over the appropriate lots in the subdivision pursuant to Section 88B of the Conveyancing Act 1919.

E3. Part 4A Certificate

Prior to the registration of final subdivision plan in the Office of the Registrar-General, a Part 4A certificate shall be obtained under section 109D(1)(d) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979.

PART F - PRIOR TO ISSUE OF OCCUPATION OR USE

F1. Landscaping in accordance with the plans

Prior to occupation or use, landscaping works must be completed in accordance with the plans referred to in Condition A2, as amended by Condition B2.

F2. Section 73 Certificate

A Section 73 Compliance Certificate under the Sydney Water Act 1994 must be obtained from Sydney Water Corporation.

Application must be made through an authorised Water Servicing Coordinator. Please refer to the Building, Development and Plumbing section of the website at www.sydneywater.com.au then refer to "Water Servicing Coordinator" under "Developing Your Land" or telephone 13 20 92 for assistance.

Following application a "Notice of Requirements" will advise of water and sewer infrastructure to be built and charges to be paid. Please make early contact with the Coordinator, as it may take some time to build water/sewer pipes and this may impact on other services and building, driveway or landscape design.

A copy of Sydney Water's Notice of Requirements must be submitted to Council.

The Section 73 Certificate must be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to occupation or use.

F3. Fire Safety Certificate

A Fire Safety Certificate shall be furnished to the PCA for all the Essential Fire or Other Safety Measures forming part of this approval prior to occupation or use. A copy of the Fire Safety certificate must be submitted to the consent authority and Council by the PCA.

F4. Road Damage

The cost of repairing any damage caused to Council or other Public Authority's assets in the vicinity of the subject site as a result of construction works associated with the approved development, is to be met in full by the Applicant/developer prior to occupation or use.

Note: Should the cost of damage repair work not exceed the road maintenance bond, Council will automatically call up the bond to recover the costs. Should the repair costs exceed the bond amount, a separate invoice will be issued.

F5. Post-construction Dilapidation Report

- (1) The Applicant shall engage a suitably qualified person to prepare a post-construction dilapidation report at the completion of the construction works. This report to ascertain whether the construction works created any structural damage to adjoining buildings, infrastructure and roads.
- (2) The report is to be submitted to the PCA. In ascertaining whether adverse structural damage has occurred to adjoining buildings, infrastructure and roads, the PCA must:
 - (a) compare the post-construction dilapidation report with the pre-construction dilapidation report required by Condition B11, and
 - (b) have written confirmation from the relevant authority that there is no adverse structural damage to their infrastructure and roads.
- (3) A copy of this report is to be forwarded to the Director and Council.

PART G - DURING OPERATIONS

G1. Annual Fire Safety Certification

The owner of the building shall certify to Council every year that the essential services installed in the building for the purpose of fire safety have been inspected and at the time of inspection are capable of operating to the required minimum standard. This purpose of this condition is to ensure that there is adequate safety of persons in the building in the event of fire and for the prevention of fire, the suppression of fire and the prevention of spread of fire.

G2. Loading and Unloading

All loading and unloading of service vehicles in connection with the use of the premises shall be carried out wholly within the site at all times.

G3. Unobstructed Driveways and Parking Areas

All driveways and parking areas shall be unobstructed at all times. Driveways and car spaces shall not be used for the manufacture, storage or display of goods, materials or any other equipment and shall be used solely for vehicular access and for the parking of vehicles associated with the use of the premises.

G4. Provision of Parking Spaces for Adjoining Medical Centre

At least ten parking spaces as indicated on the approved plans are to be provided for the use of the adjoining medical centre for as long as it continues to operate under the exiting approvals (A2822 and A4727) issued by Ryde Council.

G5. Storage of Hazardous or Toxic Material

Any hazardous or toxic materials must be stored in accordance with Workcover Authority requirements and all tanks, drums and containers of toxic and hazardous materials shall be stored in a bunded area. The bund walls and floors shall be constructed of impervious materials and shall be of sufficient size to contain 110% of the volume of the largest tank plus the volume displaced by any additional tanks within the bunded area.

G6. Public Way to be Unobstructed

The public way must not be obstructed by any materials, vehicles, refuse, skips or the like, under any circumstances.

ADVISORY NOTES

AN1. Sydney Water

An application shall be made to Sydney Water for a Certificate under Part 6, Division 9, Section 73 of the Sydney Water Act, 1994 (Compliance Certificate). The Section 73 Certificate shall be submitted to the PCA prior to the occupation or use of the development or release of the linen plan.

AN2. Requirements of Public Authorities for Connection to Services

The Applicant shall comply with the requirements of any public authorities (e.g. Energy Australia, Sydney Water, Telstra Australia, AGL, etc) in regard to the connection to, relocation and/or adjustment of the services affected by the construction of the proposed structure. Any costs in the relocation, adjustment or support of services shall be the responsibility of the Applicant. Details of compliance with the requirements of any relevant public authorities are to be submitted to the satisfaction of the PCA prior to the issue of the Section 109R Certificate for building works.

AN3. Compliance with Building Code of Australia

The Applicant is advised to consult with the PCA about any modifications needed to comply with the BCA prior to submitting the application for a Section 109R Certificate.

AN4. Application for Hoardings and Scaffolding

A separate application shall be made to Council for approval under Section 68 of the Local Government Act, 1993, to erect a hoarding or scaffolding in a public place. Such an application shall include:

- Architectural, construction and structural details of the design in accordance with Council's Policy
- Structural certification prepared and signed by an suitably qualified practising structural engineer.
- The Applicant shall provide evidence of the issue of a Structural Works Inspection Certificate
 and structural certification shall be submitted to the satisfaction of the PCA prior to the
 commencement of works.

AN5. Application for Hoardings and Scaffolding

The applicant shall obtain all necessary approvals under s138 of the Roads Act, for removal of the street tree.

AN6. Use of Mobile Cranes

The Applicant shall obtain all necessary permits required for the use of mobile cranes on or surrounding the site, prior to the commencement of works. In particular, the following matters shall be complied with to the satisfaction of the PCA.

For special operations including the delivery of materials, hoisting of plant and equipment and erection and dismantling of on site tower cranes which warrant the on street use of mobile cranes, permits must be obtained from Council:

- at least 48 hours prior to the works for partial road closures which, in the opinion of Council will create minimal traffic disruptions, and
- at least 4 weeks prior to the works for full road closures and partial road closures which, in the opinion of Council, will create significant traffic disruptions.

The use of mobile cranes must comply with the approved hours of construction and shall not be delivered to the site prior to 7.30am without the prior approval of Council.

AN7. Noise Generation

Any noise generated during the construction of the development shall not exceed limits specified in any relevant noise management policy prepared pursuant to the Protection of the Environment Operations Act, 1997 or exceed approved noise limits for the site.

AN8. Street Numbering

Street numbers and the building name(s), if any, will need to be clearly displayed at either end of the ground level frontages in accordance with Council's Policy, prior to the occupation of the building(s) or commencement of the use. If street numbers or a change to street numbers is required, a separate application shall be made to Council.

AN9. Temporary Structures

An approval under Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993 must be obtained from the Council for the erection of the temporary structures. The application must be supported by a report detailing compliance with the provisions of the Building Code of Australia.

Structural certification from an appropriately qualified practicing structural engineer must be submitted to the Council with the application under Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993 to certify the structural adequacy of the design of the temporary structures.

AN10. Disability Discrimination Act

This application has been assessed in accordance with the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979. No guarantee is given that the proposal complies with the Disability Discrimination Act 1992. The applicant/owner is responsible to ensure compliance with this and other anti-discrimination legislation. The Disability Discrimination Act 1992 covers disabilities not catered for in the minimum standards called up in the Building Code of Australia which references AS 1428.1 - Design for Access and Mobility. AS1428 Parts 2, 3 & 4 provides the most comprehensive technical guidance under the Disability Discrimination Act 1992 currently available in Australia.

AN11. Commonwealth Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999

The Commonwealth Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 provides that a person must not take an action which has, will have, or is likely to have a significant impact on a matter of national environmental significance (NES) matter; or Commonwealth land, without an approval from the Commonwealth Environment Minister.

This application has been assessed in accordance with the New South Wales Environmental Planning & Assessment Act, 1979. The determination of this assessment has not involved any assessment of the application of the Commonwealth legislation. It is the proponent's responsibility to consult Environment Australia to determine the need or otherwise for Commonwealth approval and you should not construe this grant of consent as notification to you that the Commonwealth Act does not have application. The Commonwealth Act may have application and you should obtain advice about this matter. There are severe penalties for non-compliance with the Commonwealth legislation.

SCHEDULE 3- Statement of Commitments

MP10_0179

PROJECT APPLICATION FOR

Graythwaite Rehabilitation Centre, Ryde Hospital, Denistone

(sources: Environmental Assessment/ Response to Submissions)

Subject	Commitments
1. Traffic and accessibility	A Workplace Travel Plan is to be prepared and implemented during the occupation of the proposed rehabilitation centre. The framework for the Workplace Travel Plan is to follow the framework identified in the Traffic and Accessibility Report prepared by Halcrow and accompanying the EA at Appendix 8 .
2. Ecologically Sustainable	The proposal will aim to achieve a standard equivalent to a 4 Star Green Star rating.
Development	The proposal is to comply with the recommendations of the ESD Report prepared by Steensen Varming and appended to the EA at Appendix 11 . Such
	 recommendations include, but are not limited to the following:- The project must consider exceeding the deemed-to-satisfy requirements of Section J of the BCA;
	It is recommended that hospital management / the Clients, establish a Sustainability Control Group (SCG) or Green Team, within the organisation, to help implement policies for ESD. This group should consist of director-level representatives, or other high-level staff members who have a decision-making capacity;
	The internal noise levels from building services should meet the recommended design sound levels provided in Table 1 of AS/NZS2107:2000 for 95% of the project's nominated area;
	The facility lighting design is to provide a maintenance illuminance of not greater than 25% above the minimum maintained illuminance levels recommended in Table F1 of AS 1680.2.5 for 95% of the nominated area as measured at the working place (or as required by AS 1680.2.5).
	During the construction phase of the project, it would be recommended to implement the following; - "Reduce construction waste by implementing a Waste Management"
	Plan (WMP). - Encourage reuse or recycling of construction waste. (This requirement will be specified within the Tender preliminaries).
	 Implement a site – specific Environmental Management Plan. Appoint a Contractor who holds a valid ISO 14001 accreditation prior to and throughout the construction.
	 Maintain and conserve the ecological integrity of site by implementing good construction practices."
	 During the operation phase of the project, it would be recommended to implement the following; "Benchmarks / targets must be set for future monitoring and
	benchmarking. Implement ongoing monitoring to allow for optimization of building
	energy consumption. - Purchase green power from an energy supplier.
	 Provide area dedicated for the separation, storage and collection of recyclables (paper, plastics, mercury containing products & devices). Provide periodic staff training and provide information to occupants regarding the buildings environmental attributes and performance.

- Utilise a Building Management System (BMS) to maximise the effectiveness of building services.
- Encourage the use of non-potable water (ex: rainwater harvesting) whenever possible

3. Contamination

The proposal is to comply with the recommendations contained in the Stage 1 Environmental Site Assessment report prepared by EIS and appended to the EA at **Appendix 6**. Such recommendations include, but are not limited to the following:-

- The site is to be inspected by experienced environmental personnel during excavation works "to assess any unexpected conditions or subsurface facilities that may be discovered between investigation locations and to better assess the potential for asbestos contamination beneath the existing buildings at the site."
- "The requirement to report to the DECCW (EPA) under Section 60 and Guidelines on the Duty to Report Contamination 22 under the CLM Amendment Act 2008 should be assessed once the site has been inspected following... excavation works."

4. Geotechnical

The proposal is to comply with the recommendations contained in the Geotechnical Investigation report prepared by Jeffery and Katauskas and appended to the EA at **Appendix 7**. We note that the recommendations provided in the Geotechnical Investigation report are quite extensive and have therefore not been included in this Statement of Commitments and reference should be made to the complete report at **Appendix 7**.

The recommendations of the letter of advice prepared by Jeffery and Katauskas at **Appendix 8** of the Response to Submissions report will be complied with.

5. Aboriginal Heritage

Once ground clearance, excavation or site preparation works commence, if something is discovered that could be an Aboriginal object, a qualified Heritage Consultant must be contacted. In that instance, advice is to be sought from the Environment Protection and Regulation Group of the Office of Environment and Heritage relating to recording the finds and the appropriate management options.

6. Drainage and stormwater management

The recommendations of the Civil Design Report prepared by Taylor Thomson Whitting and accompanying the EA at **Appendix 13** are to be complied with to ensure appropriate stormwater management and erosion and sediment control measures are undertaken. Such recommendations include, but are not limited to the following:-

- Necessary measures are to be adopted as may for erosion control, including the following where applicable:
 - Staging: Staging of operations (eg. clearing, stripping, demolition);
 - Restoration: Progressive restoration of disturbed areas;
 - Drains: Temporary drains and catch drains;
 - Dispersal: Diversion and dispersal of concentrated flows to points where the water can pass through the site without damage;
 - Spreader Banks: Or other structures to disperse concentrated silt traps;
 - Construction and maintenance of silt traps to prevent discharge of scoured material to downstream areas;
 - Temporary grassing: Or other treatment to disturbed areas (eg. contour ploughing);
 - Temporary fencing.
- The building is required to liaise and comply with the requirements of the Landcom's Managing Urban Stormwater "Soil and Construction" (The "Blue Book") and the local Council.
- The builder is required to apply dust and noise control measures to minimise
 disturbance to the functioning of neighbouring properties. The contractor is
 required to demonstrate the proposed works equipment to be within acceptable
 limits for noise and vibration as determined by a registered acoustic consultant.
- Shoring, excavation techniques, excavation support, temporary and permanent batters are to be undertaken in accordance with TTW's specification and the recommendations of a qualified practicing Geotechnical Engineer.
- Site preparation works are to include the following:

Stripping of topsoil from work areas to be stockpiled for landscape areas. Tyne, water and roll the areas over which filling, paving or building slabs are to be placed. Six passes of a 10 tonne static roller are required. The final pass shall be a proof roll where movement of greater than 3mm under the roller will indicate Bad Ground. Placement of acceptable material from cut areas shall be placed in layers of not more than 200mm to the compaction requirements. Filled areas and cut areas to be overlain by buildings and pavements are to be protected to maintain constant moisture content in the soil. The protection is to remain in place until construction is complete. An independent approved NATA registered testing authority is required to perform all the compaction testing of earthworks and submit test certificates to the Principal. Certification will be required that aggregates are suitable for use in roadwork and concrete. All proposed internal pipeworks which consist of pipes and access pits shall be designed in accordance with Australian Rainfall & Runoff (AR&R), Council and AS 3500.3 1998 and will be directed to the on-site detention (OSD) tank systems prior to discharge to Council's receiving stormwater network in Fourth Avenue. The OSD tanks system is to be designed in accordance with Ryde City Council's requirements to provide temporary storage and restrict stormwater peak discharge flowrates from the site to a rate that specified by Council. All pavements (including roads, parking areas, paths and service vehicle access areas) are to be designed and constructed in accordance with Section 5.0 of the Geotechnical Investigation Report at Appendix 13 of the EA. 7. Ecology Appropriate replacement planting is to be undertaken within the Fourth Avenue Road Reserve and to the north of the site to offset the removal of the street tree. Replanting is to be undertaken in accordance with Council's specifications. 8. Management A Construction Management Plan (CMP) is to be prepared prior to construction to adequately manage any potential environmental impacts associated with the of Construction noise, vibration, construction of the proposed rehabilitation centre and associated works. As a guide, the CMP is to include measures for waste, noise, vibration, dust, air, traffic, water and dust, soil and soil and erosion control management. The proposed construction is to be undertaken erosion in accordance with the CMP for the development. Hours of construction will be limited to 7.00am to 5.00pm Monday to Friday, and 8.00am to 1.00pm on Saturdays. There will be no work on Sundays and public holidays. Waste management is to be undertaken in accordance with the Construction Waste 9. Waste Management Plan prepared by Aurora Projects (refer to Appendix 19b) and the Operation Waste Management Plan prepared by NSW Health NSLHN (refer to Appendix 19a). The proposal is to comply with the recommendations contained within the Access 10. Access Report prepared by Morris Goding Accessibility Consulting accompanying the EA at Appendix 12 to ensure compliance with the relevant legislation and regulatory requirements. Such recommendations include, but are not limited to, the following:-Ensure the connecting pathway to building main entry has a 1:20 min. gradient, compliant with AS1428.1. Ensure the active leaf of main entry doors provides 850mm clear width (generally 920mm door leaf), compliant with AS1428.1. Ensure a 1:8 kerb ramp, compliant with AS1428.1 is provided at patient drop off zone to enable wheelchair access from roadway to building entry.

Consideration should be given to provide 850mm clear width doorways (generally 920mm door leaf) at all fire stairs, fire passages and egress doors to street level.

Emergency Egress

This will allow some level of fire safety protection for a person using a wheelchair (advisory).

Circulation Areas

 Ensure handrails are provided along at least one side of every passageway or corridor that is used by patients. Where practical the handrail shall be continuous for their full length, compliant with BCA section D2.17.

Doors

- Ensure all consulting and staff room doors provide 850mm min. clear width (generally 920mm door leaf), compliant with AS1428.1.
- Ensure all consulting and staff room doors provide 510-530mm latch side clearance, compliant with AS1428.1.
- Ensure the active leaf of all dual hinged doors of equal width provide 850mm min. clear width (generally 920mm door leaf), compliant with AS1428.1.

Stairs

 Ensure the handrails indicated on both sides of stair are compliant with AS1428.1.

Passenger Lifts

 Ensure the lift cars have internal lift components (control panels, audio/visual indicators, handrails and light levels) that meet the requirements of AS1735.12 and BCA E3.6.

Access Linkages

- As western fire stair becomes a communication stair between level 2 building and external walkway, ensure it includes handrails on both sides and is compliant with AS1428.1 to assist ambulant people with disabilities.
- Ensure active leaf of dual hinged doors (equal width) from level 2 east lobby to external area provide 850mm min. clear width, compliant with AS1428.1.
- Ensure any connecting external path of travel to 'The Chattery' from the building level 2 east lobby doors is compliant with AS1428.1

Office and Staff Amenities

- Ensure all office and staff room doors provide 850mm min. clear width (generally 920mm door leaf), compliant with AS1428.1.
- Ensure all office and staff room doors provide 510-530mm latch side clearance, compliant with AS1428.1.

In-patient Lounge and Common Facilities

- Ensure all common-use doors provide 850mm min. clear width (generally 920mm door leaf), compliant with AS1428.1.
- Ensure all common-use doors provide 510-530mm latch side clearance, compliant with AS1428.1.

North Terrace

• Ensure the active leaf of all dual hinged doors to terrace provide 850mm min. clear width, compliant with AS1428.1.

South Terrace

 If terrace will be used as a common-use area, ensure an accessible path of travel compliant with AS1428.1

Accessible Toilets

- To ensure compliance with AS1428.1-2009 and Ryde Council DCP, the accessible toilets should be enlarged to ensure there is 2300mm x 1900mm clear circulation space around the WC pan with the basin outside this area (max. encroachment 100mm). Overall internal dimensions of approx. 2400mm x 2400mm are required (basin on adjacent wall to pan as shown), for compliance with AS1428.1 fig 43.
- Ensure fixtures within all accessible WCs are installed in compliance with AS1428.1-2009.

Therapy Pool Accessible Toilet and Shower

- To ensure compliance with AS1428.1-2009 and Ryde Council DCP, the accessible toilets should be enlarged to ensure there is 2300mm x 1900mm clear circulation space around the WC pan with the basin outside this area (max. encroachment 100mm). Overall internal dimensions of approx. 2400mm x 2400mm are required (basin on adjacent wall to pan as shown), for compliance with AS1428.1 fig 43.
- To ensure compliance with AS1428.1-2009 and Ryde Council DCP, the accessible toilet should be enlarged to ensure there is 2300mm x 1900mm around the WC pan with the basin to sit outside this area (max. encroachment 100mm).
- Ensure fixtures within the accessible WC and separate shower are installed in compliance with AS1428.1-2009.

Therapy Pool

- To ensure compliance with DDA Premises Standard and BCA 2011, ensure the fixed pool ramp is designed in accordance with Part D5.2 and AS1428.1. This requires 1:14 max. gradient and appropriate landings at top and bottom and every 9metres.
- Ensure handrails are provided on both sides of the ramp, compliant with AS1428.1

Car Parking

- Ensure door from car park to entry lobby provides 850mm min. clear width (generally 920mm door leaf), compliant with AS1428.1.
- Provide 1540 x 2070mm min. circulation space at end of access way outside car park door for wheelchair manoeuvrability, compliant with AS1428.1.
- Ensure 2500mm min. height clearance over the accessible car spaces and 2200mm min. height clearance on path of travel from car park entry, compliant with AS2890.6.

Signage

- Signage is to comply with DDA Premises Standards and BCA part D3.6.
- Provide way finding signage to accessible entrances, lifts and accessible toilets.

11. Noise and Vibration

The proposal is to comply with the recommendations contained in the Acoustic Assessment report prepared by Acoustic Logic and appended to the EA at **Appendix 21**. We note that the recommendations provided in the Acoustic Assessment report are quite extensive and have therefore not been included in this Statement of Commitments and reference should be made to the complete report at **Appendix 21**.

A detailed construction noise and vibration management plan is to be prepared prior to any work commencing on the site.

The requirements and recommendations of the acoustic specification report at **Appendix 6** and the emergency generator assessment report at **Appendix 7** are to be complied with.

As per the Renzo Tonin acoustic peer review prepared to accompany the Ryde Medical Centre submission, an additional review of mechanical services will be conducted based on contractor's final selections to ensure these selections meet the set design criteria.

12. Consultation

Future consultation with key stakeholders is to be undertaken during the course of the Project Application in accordance with the commitments outlined in the Community Consultation note at **Appendix 20** and the NSW Department of Planning's Major Project Community Consultation Guidelines October 2007.